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NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the members of CARE Risk Solutions
Private Limited (Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advisory Services Private
Limited) will be held on Tuesday, the 23™ July, 2019 at 1.00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the
Company at Unit No. 602, 6th Floor, “RUPA SOLITAIRE”, Plot No. MBP-2, Millennium Business Park,
Sector 1, T.T.C. Industrial Area, Mahape, Navi Mumbai — 400 710 to transact the following business:

NOTICE

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider, and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended on 31t March, 2019, including the audited Balance Sheet as at 31t March, 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss account for the year ended on that date together with the reports
of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) and Auditors thereon.

2.  To declare dividend on 0.1% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
for the Financial Year 2018-19.

3.  To appoint Director in place of Mr. Rajesh Mokashi (DIN 02781355), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

NOTES:

1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT OF PROXY IN ORDER TO BE
EFFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. A PROXY SO APPOINTED SHALL NOT HAVE ANY RIGHT
TO SPEAK AT THE MEETING.

2) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a
proxy on behalf of not more than fifty members and holding in the aggregate not more than
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights
may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other
person or shareholder.

3) All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are available for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during office hours on all days except Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays, up to the date of this Annual General Meeting.

4) During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the
meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to
inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided
that not less than three days of notice in writing is given to the Company.

CARE RISK SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.
Wholly owned subsidiary of CARE RATINGS LIMITED e Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advisory Services Pvt. Ltd.

Unit No. 602, 6th Floor, Rupa Solitaire, Plot No. MBP-2, Millenium Business Park, Sector 1, T.T.C Industrial Area, Mahape, Navi Mumbai - 400710, INDIA
Tel.:+91-22- 61748900  Fax: +91-22- 022 6174 8974  www.carerisksolutions.com  CIN-U74210MH1999PTC118349



Aemri
Solutions

5)  The details of the directors seeking appointment/reappointment under item no. 3 of this

Notice, as stipulated under Secretarial Standards - 2 issued by the Company Secretaries of
India is annexed.

6)  Members/proxies should fill the attendance slip for attending the meeting.

7)  In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the
order of names will be entitled to vote.

8)  Body corporate members are requested to lodge a valid authorization in pursuance of section
113 of the Companies Act, 2013 at the registered office of the Company

9) A route map showing directions to reach the venue of the Annual General Meeting is given at

the end of the Notice as per the requirements of Secretarial Standards — 2 on General

Meetings.

By Order of the Board of Directors
FOR CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited

AW
Date: May 03, 2019 Manoj Dhondge

Place: Navi Mumbai Company Secretary
Membership No. A55592
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As per Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of the Company Secretaries of India, the
following information is furnished about the Directors proposed to be reappointed / appointed.

Name of the Director

Mr. Rajesh Mokashi

Director Identification Number 02781355
Date of Birth 01.09.1961
Nationality Indian
Date of appointment on the Board 22.11.2011

Wholly owned subsidiary of CARE RATINGS LIMITED e

Number of equity shares held in the
Company

One (Jointly with CARE ratings Limited)

Qualifications

Bachelor's degree in Mechanical Engineering from VITI,
Mumbai, Master of Management Studies degree from
University of Bombay, Chartered Financial Analyst and
also cleared Level Il of the CFA Program conducted by
the CFA Institute, USA and Diploma in Import and Export
Management Indian Institute of Materials
Management.

from

Expertise in functional area

He has more than 30 years of experience in finance,
commerce and credit risk sectors.

List of Directorship held in other
companies

1) CARE Ratings Limited

2) CARE Advisory Research and Training Limited
3) CARE Ratings Nepal Limited

4) CARE Ratings Africa Private Limited

Chairman / Member of the Committees
of the Boards of other companies in
which he is a director

Member — Stakeholders Relationship Committee — CARE
Ratings Limited

Member — Corporate Social Responsibility Committee —
CARE Ratings Limited

Member — Human Resources Committee — CARE Ratings
Limited

Terms & Conditions of re-appointment/ | NA
variation of remuneration

Inter-se relationship with other Directors | NIL
Last drawn remuneration NIL

No. of Board meetings attended during 4 (Four)

the year

Date: May 03, 2019
Place: Navi Mumbai

By Order of the Board of Directors
FOR CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited

T

Manoj Dhondge
Company Secretary
Membership No. A55592
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Drive 1.5 km, 5 min
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To,
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Board’s Report on the business and operations of your

BOARD'S REPORT

Company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 March, 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

7 "The Board has not recommended to transfer any amount to General Reserves.

31% March, 2019 31* March, 2018
Particulars (in Rs.) {In Rs.)
Revenue 15,49,10,967 9,89,12,135
Add: Other Income 25,98,791 8,71,773
Total Income 15,75,09,758 9,97,83,908
Total Expenditure {14,23,36,913) (9,71,31,466)
Profit/Loss before tax (PBT) 1,51,72,845 26,52,442
Less: Current Tax - o
Less: Deferred Tax 22,08,737 {10,12,567)
Profit/ Loss after tax 1,29,64,108 36,65,009
Balance Surplus / (Deficit) carried to Balance Sheet 1,29,64,108 36,65,009

RESERVES

DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend any Equity dividend for the year under review with a view to conserve
resources.

Your Directors are pleased to recommend to pay the Preference dividend of Rs. 50,000/- on 0.1%
Optionally Convertible Cumulative Preference Share Capital for the Financial year 2018-2019 as per the
terms of issuance.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of your Company comprises of 1,00,00,000 {One Crore) Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- {Rupees Ten Only) each amounting to Rs.10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores only) and 50,00,000
{Fifty Lakhs) 0.1% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference share of Rs 10/- (Rupees Ten
only) each amounting to Rs. 5,00,00,000 {Rupees Five Crores only). The Paid-up Share Capital comprises of
80,13,500 (Eighty Lakhs Thirteen Thousand Five Hundred Only) Equity Shares amounting to
Rs$.8,01,35,000/- (Eight Crores One Lakh Thirty Five Thousand Only) and 50,00,000 (Fifty Lakh) 0.1%
Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares amounting to Rs. 5,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Five Crores only).
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REVENUE & EBIDTA

During FY 2018-19 the Revenue from Operations of the company grew by 56.61% and stood at 15.49 Cr as
against the revenues hooked of Rs 9.89 Cr in FY 2017-18, which led to the increase in profit after tax to Rs.
1.30 Cr against the profit booked in FY 2017-18 which was Rs.0.37 Cr.

OPERATIONS REVIEW OUTLOCK AND ACHIEVEMENTS:

1. Project deliveries

During FY 2018-19 your company has successfully implemented projects viz. CRDB Bank (IFRS) (Tanzania),
Union Bank of Colombo (IFRS) {Sri Lanka), Bank of Bhutan (IFRS), CARE Ratings {Model Validation) and Seylan
Bank {Upgrade of ALM and Market Risk). The Company has secured order from Bank of Ceylon, Sri Lanka,
Chennai Branch for ALM.

R

Your company has been awarded contract for implementation of IFRS 9 by Bank of Ceylon which is the largest
commercial Bank in Sri Lanka. This has strengthened the company’s position in iFRS - 9 market in the
geography. The Company has commenced the new projects at Union Bank of Colombo (RLOS) and Indian
Bank (AML) during this year.

i

With more structured and process driven approach, the team has acquired capabilities to execute muttiple
projects in paraliel. As such, it is in a position to meet the challenges of growing volumes in future.

. Product development/ enhancements .

During FY 2018-19, the Company has undertaken major Product development initiatives. The Company has
taken up UI/UX project. 100% of the UI/UX designing has been completed. 95% of modules in IFRS application
have been built.

The Company is looking into the current market requirement and demand for IFRS 9 and Ind-AS and for that
the Company has engaged consultant for functional upgradation of IFRS and FRA products.

3. Sales and Marketing

FY 2018-19 has seen a more focused approach towards the markets. The Company has established strong
partner network in Bhutan, Cambodia, Laos, Vietnam and Bangladesh. The Company has started digital
marketing which will provide us necessary brand visibility on various social media platforms and also work
towards leveraging social media for brand building and targeted marketing campaign. The Company has
started working on opportunities with Indian Public Sector Banks. The Company is hopeful of many more
opportunities for IND AS product implementation in India, it being the regulatory requirement. The Company
has begun exploring possibilities of extending IFRS product capabilities to other domain areas like insurance,
telecom and manufacturing.
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“"HUMAN RESOURCES

Your company believes that human capital is a key enabler in achieving a differentiated growth. The
product development, project execution as well as support depends on the quality of Human Resources. In
this regard your company has a structured process of interviewing by keeping in mind the competencies
required.

As part of employees skill development program, your company identifies various training needs for its
employees keeping in mind the required skill enhancements and nominates its employees for various
training programs. These initiatives enable the company to retain its core quality resources and keep them
updated with the current market trend. ‘

PROSPECTS

Barring unforeseen circumstances, the Directors are confident that the Company will be able to achieve
sustainable growth in future.

DETAILS RELATING TO DEPOSITS COVERED UNDER CHAPTER V OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,

SRR T T

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the purview of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013
during the year under review. Further no amount en account of principal or interest on public deposits was
outstanding as on 31* March, 2019.

.ST_ATEMENT SHOWING THE DETAILS OF EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY PURSUANT TO SECTION. 197(1;);_;{ -
" OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5{2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT ‘&
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

None of the employees of the Company is in receipt of remuneration as prescribed under Section 197(12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5{2) of the Companies {Appointment & Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Regular meetings of the Board were held to discuss the performance of the Company. The maximum gap
between any two Board Meetings was less than 120 days. Total 4 (Four) meetings of the Board of Directors
were held during the Financial year 2018-2019.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by
your Directors, they make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)}{c) of the Companies Act,
2013 and hereby confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2019, the applicable
accounting standards have been foliowed along with proper explanations relatmg to material
departures, if any.

Y
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""b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2019 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date .

¢} The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
‘in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

PRREER R R ke RO AR i

d) The Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 on a “going
concern” basis.

e} The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings
and outgo as required under Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is as follows:

R N T e T T B P R g

i
7

Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption

"“to conserve the resources as reqmred under Sectlon 134 (3) {m} of the Companies Act 2013 read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. As your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity, the
particulars of technology absorption as required under the section are not applicable.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo z

During the year under review the Company has earned a foreign exchange of Rs. 7,35,16,630/-and has spent
a foreign exchange of Rs. 2,78,45,530/-.

AUDITORS' REPORT

The Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call
for any further comments. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made
by Statutory Auditors, in their report.

During the financial year there under no instances of fraud detected by the statutory auditors as prescribed
under Sectior 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a} of Section 134 and sub-section {3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act 2013,
read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 the extracts of the Annual
Return as at March 31, 2019 forms part, of this report as Annexure 1.
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Wholly owned sub5|d|ary of CARE RATINGS LIMITED s Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologles\an\d {\/dvuﬁeéme

'SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary, Joint Venture, Assaociate Company or LLPs during the year under
review.

LOANS, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not granted any loans, guarantees and investments for the financial year ended 31 March,
2019,

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

i. Key Managerial Personnel
Company Secretary

Ms. Sonia Thakur, Company Secretary, KMP and Compliance Officer of the Company resigned from the
services of the Company with effect from 14th May, 2018.

Conseguent to Ms. Sonia Thakur's resignation, the Board appointed Mr. Haresh Swaminathan as the
Company Secretary, KMP and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from 14™ May, 2018 and he
has resigned from the services of the Company with effect from 24t October, 2018.

q

Chief Financiai Officer

Mr. Arunshrikeshav Srinivasan, Chief Financial Officer (KMP) of the Company resigned from the services of
the Company with effect from 29" January, 2019.

Consequent to Mr. Arunshrikeshav Srinivasan’s resignation, the Board appointed Mr. Nitesh Poojari as the
Chief Financial Officer {(KMP) of the Company with effect from 30" January, 2019.

i, Directors retire by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Section 152(6){e) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles
of Association of the Company, Mr. Rajesh Mokashi {DIN: 02781355), will retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL IN RESPECT WITH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has an Internal Financial Control System commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of
its operations. Your Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks
to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically
addressed through mitigating action on continuing basis. These are routinely tested and certified by Statutory
as well as Internal Auditors. Significant Audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the

CARE RISK SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD. b

vt Ltd.
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Audit Committee. During the year under review, no material or serious ohservations has been received from
the internal Auditor of the Company for inefficiency or inadeq uacy of such controls.

&

Vi

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All transactions entered into during the financial year 2018-19 with Related Parties as defined under the
Companies Act were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the
Company had not entered into any transaction referred to in Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3) of the Companies
Act in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is aware of the risks associated with the business. It regularly analyses and takes corrective
actions for managing/mitigating the same. The Company has devised a check process for identifying,
minimizing and mitigating risk which is periodically reviewed so as to ensure sustainable business growth
with stability and to promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated
with the business.

=
|
-
E

In today’s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing
the growth plans of the Company are imperative. The common risks inter alia are: Regulations, Competition,
Business risk, Technology obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities.

ncial risk, political risk, fidelity. risk, legal risk. These risks ‘are.

SIGNIFIICANT AND MATERIAEL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS,

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going
concern status of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the financial year of the Company as on 31% March, 2019 to which the financial
statements relate and the date of this report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
The nature of the business of the Company continues to remain the same as previous year.

COMPLIANCE OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF
INDIA [I1CSI

It is hereby confirmed that the Company has complied with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition of Audit Committee comprises of three directors. The representatives of the Statutory
Auditors and Internal Auditors remain present at the Meetings. Mr. Ma noj Dhondge, Company Secretary acts
as Secretary to the Committee Meetings. The Audit Committee invites such of the executives, professionals
and other persons, as it deem necessary for its functioning.

Name of the Directors
s Mr. Lalit Pophale

* Mr. Rajesh Mokashi
s Mr. Mehul Pandya

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION &
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company’s policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace is in line with the requirement of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
{Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder.
Internal Complaints Committees have also been set up to redress the Complaints received regarding sexual
harassment.

- Your Compan{ also conducts sessions of employees to build awareness amongst employe
pr 'v;SIons of Prevent;on of Sex _aI:eHarassment of Women at Workpiace Act

Your company is committed to providing a safe and conducive work environment to all its employees.
During the financial year 2018-19 your Company has not received any complaints.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the sincere and unstinted support provided to
the Company by State Governments, Government agencies, Banks & Financial Institutions, customers,
shareholders vendors and other related organizations and CARE Ratings Ltd., and the employees at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited

Place : Mumbai
Dated : 3" May, 2019

Rajesh Mokashi
Chairman
DIN: 062781355
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ANNEXURE-1
Form No. MGT-9 ,
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31 March, 2019 .
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the h,_{
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] %
L REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i CIN U74210MH1999PTC118349 gﬁ
ii. Registration Date 15.02.1999 %
ji. Name of the Company CARE RISK SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED %
iv. Category / Sub-Category of the Company | Indian Non-Government Company g
v. | Address of the Registered office and Unit No. 602, 6th Floor, “RUPA SOLITAIRE”,
contact details Plot No. MBP-2, Millennium Business Park, %
Sector 1, T.T.C. Industrial Area, 1@
Mahape, Navi Mumbai — 400 710.
Tel: 022 - 61748900 '%f
vi. | Whether listed company (Yes / No) o
i. -| Name, Address-and.Contact details of '
~Registrarand Transfer Agent, if any’

L PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company, on standalone
basis, are as under;

Sl. No. | Name and Description of main products / | NIC Code of the | %to total turnover of
services Product/service the Company
1 Risk Solution System 72291 99
Advisory 74140 1

. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. | Name and Address of the CIN/GLN Holding / % of shares | Applicable
No. | Company Subsidiary/Associate held Section
1. CARE Ratings Limited L67190MH1993PLC071691 | Holding 100% 2(46)

Address: 4" Floor, Godrej
Coliseum, Somaiya Hospital
Road, Off. Eastern Express
Highway, Sion {East), Mumbai ~
400 022.
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(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sl Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding %G change
No. beginning of the year during the year inshare-
{As on 01.04.2018) (As on 31.03.2019) -holding
No. of Shares % of total % change in % of total during the
Shares of share- Shares of year
the -holding during the
Company the year Company
1 CARE Ratings Limited
(Formerly known as Credit
Analysis and Research
Limited (CARE) -
At the beginning of the year 80,13,491 100.00
Date wise Increase/Decrease 0 0.00

in Promoters shareholding
during the year, specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease (eg. Allotment
/transfer/bonus/sweat

| ‘At 'the end of the year -

80,13,491 |

100.00

0.00

Shri Rajesh Mokashi jointly
with CARE Ratings Limited
(Formerly known as Credit
Analysis and Research
Limited )

At the beginning of the year

0.00

Date wise Increase/Decrease
in Promoters shareholding
during the year, specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease {eg. Allotment
[transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

0.00

At the end of the year

0.00

0.00

\%
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Ms. Revati Kasture jointly
with CARE Ratings Limited
(Formerly known as Credit
Analysis and Research
Limited )

At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise Increase/Decrease 0 0.00 0.00
in Promoters shareholding
| during the year, specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease (eg. Allotment
[transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

At the end of the year 1 0.00 0.00

:a;s{;ﬂgﬁ{&&&k‘i@ﬂiﬁf&:ﬁ@’;&kﬁ%‘?ﬁ%ﬁl%‘3-'\ R T

BN

B

4 Shri T. N. Arun Kumar jointly
with CARE Ratings Limited
(Formerly known as Credit
Analysis and Research
Limited }

At the beginning of the year

R e R S A S N T AR

in Promoters shareholding
during the year, specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease (eg. Allotment
/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)
At the end of the year 1 0.00 0.00
5 Shri Milind Gadkari jointly
with CARE Ratings Limited
(Formerly known as Credit
Analysis and Research
Limited )
At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise Increase/Decrease 0 0.00 0.00
in Promoters shareholding
during the year, specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease {eg. Allotment
/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)
At the end of the year 1 0.00 0.00 T

B,




Shri Chandresh Shah jointly
with CARE Ratings Limited
(Formerly known as Credit
Analysis and Research
Limited )

At the beginning of the year

0.00

Date wise Increase/Decrease
in Promoters shareholding
during the year, specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease (eg. Allotment
/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

0.00

0.00

At the end of the year

0.00

0.00

Shri Umesh lkhe jointly with
CARE Ratings Limited _
(Formerly known as Credit
Analysis and Research
Limited )

At the beginning of the year

in Promoter's':é'ﬁéréh:old'iﬂg
during the year, specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease {eg. allotment
/transfer /bonus /sweat
equity etc)

At the end of the year

0.00

0.00

Shri Sanjay Agarwal jointly
with CARE Ratings Limited
(Formerly known as Credit
Analysis and Research
Limited )

At the beginning of the year

0.00

Date wise Increase/Decrease
in Promoters shareholding
during the year, specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease (eg. Allotment
[transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

0.00

0.00

At the end of the year

0.00

0.00
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Shri Mehul Pandya jointly
CARE Ratings Limited
(Formerly known as Credit
Analysis and Research
Limited )

At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise increase/Decrease 0 0.00 0.00
in Promoters shareholding
during the year, specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease (eg. Allotrnent
[transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

At the end of the year 1 0.00 0.00
10 | Shri Milind Raje jointly CARE
Ratings Limited {Formerly
known as Credit Analysis
and Research Limited )

At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise Increase/Decrease |

e T N R e e T e T e [EiEGr s et Ean et

uring the year, specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease (eg. Allotment
/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc)

At the end of the year 1 1.00 0.00

{iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of

GDRs and ADRs)
Sl. No. For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the
Shareholders the year year
No. of Shares | % of total Shares No. of Shares | % of total Shares
of the Company of the Company
NIL

N

4




i

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

sl. For each of the Directors Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding F}

No. and KMP beginning of the year during the year b
{As on 01.04.2018) (As on 31.03.2019) 'f_

No. of Shares % of total No. of Shares | % of total L:;:

Shares of the Shares of the %

Company Company E

1 | Shri Rajesh Mokashi jointly with CARE 1 0.00 1 0.00

Ratings Limited {formerly known as
Credit Analysis and Research Limited)

25

2 | Shri Mehul Pandya jointly with Credit 1| 0.00 1 0.00
Analysis and Research Limited

3 | Shri Umesh Ikhe jointly with Credit 1 0.00 1 0.00
Analysis and Research Limited

RRA R R I D R

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Wﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂ B

| Secured Loans | Unsecur Deposits | ' Total " e
excluding {Rs.) Indebtedness '
deposits {Rs.)

(Rs.) .

Indebtedness at the beginning of the

financial year

i} Principal Amount 00 00 00 00

ii} Interest due but not paid 00 00 00 00

iii}) Interest accrued but not due 00 00 00 00

Total (i+ii+iii) 00 00 00 00

Change in Indebtedness during the

financial year

Addition 00 | 1,00,00,000 00 00

Reduction 00 00 00 00

Net Change 00 | 1,00,00,000 00 00

Indebtedness at the end of the financial

year

i) Principal Amount 00 | 1,00,00,000 00 00

i) Interest due but not paid 00 0o 00 00

iii) Interest accrued but not due 00 00 00 00

Total (i+ii+iii) 00 | 1,00,00,000 00 T
Ty -

Ov




Vi,

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration MD / WTD / MANAGER Total
No. NA NA Amount
1. Gross salary 6]8] 00 0C

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax

Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3}

Income-tax Act, 1961
2. | Stock Option 00 00 00
3. Sweat Equity 00 0o 00

Commission 00 00 00

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

Others, please specify (Reimbursement of

Expenses) - '
e

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:
| sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director — Total Amount
No.. Mr. Lalit Pophale
1. Independent Directors
Fee for attending board / committee meetings (Rs.) 40,000 40,000
Commission [Rs.) 00 00
Others - Conveyance (Rs.) 6,000 6,000
Total (1) {Rs.) oo 00
2. Other Non-Executive Directors 46,000 46,000
Fee for attending board / committee meetings {Rs.) 00 00
Commission (Rs.) 00 00
Others, please specify (Rs.) 00 00
Total (2) (Rs.) 00 00
Total Managerial Remuneration (Rs.) 46,000 46,000

R R S b R T R S




C REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD:
Sl Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
No. | Remuneration Mr. Umesh lkhe | Ms. Sonia Thakur Mr. Haresh Mr. Arunsrikeshayv
Chief Executive | Company Secretary | Swaminathan Srinivasan, CFO
Officer (upto 14.05.2018) Company Secretary | (upto 29.01.2019)
(From 14.05.2018
upto 25.10.2018)
1. Gross salary
{a) Salary as per provisions 55,97,504.00 85,617.00 5,71,356.00 0]
contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option 0 0 0 0
Sweat Equity 0 o 0 0
| Commission -0
- others, specify...
5. Others, please specify Mobile — Rs. 0 0 0
(Reimbursement of 44,332.00
Expenses) Leave
Encashment -
Rs. 3,52,547.00
Performance
related pay — Rs.
9,67,885.00
Reimbursement
of Expenses —
Rs. 1,08,967.00
Total 70,71,235.00 85,617.00 5,71,356.00 0
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Sk, Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
No. Remuneration Mr. Manoj Dhondge, | Mr. Nitesh Poojari, Total Amount
' Company Secretary | CFO (w.e.f.
{w.e.f. 30.10.2018) 30.01.2019}

1. | Gross salary 2,87,502.00 0 65,41,979.00
{a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
{b} Value of perquisites u/s
17{2) Income-tax Act, 1961
{c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 1‘7(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option 0 0 0
Sweat Equity 0 0 0
Commission 0 0 0
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5. Others, please specify 0 0 14,73,731.00

-t {Reimbursement of

§ o
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Vi, PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

R

Type Section of the Brief | Details of Authority | Appeal made,
Companies Act Description Penalty / [RD / NCLT if any
Punishment/ / COURT} | (give details) -
Compounding 4,
fees imposed
A. COMPANY %
Penalty 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 %
Punishment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 %g
Compounding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 '
B. DIRECTORS .
Penalty 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Punishment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Compounding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Punishment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Compounding 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00

ﬁ/ % ::73\. ‘L}im \ ‘.__M
‘@g Place : Mumbai Rajesh Mokashi
Dated : 3" May, 2019 Chairman

DiN: 02781355

e




S.P. CHOPRA & CO. 31.F, Connaught Place

Chartered Accountants New Delhi- 110 001

Tel: 91-11-23313495-6-7

Fax: 91-11-23713516

[CAl Regn.No. 000346N

Web Site: www.spchopra.in
E-mail: spc1949@spchopra.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CARE RISK SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advisory
Services Pvt. Lid.)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advisory Services Pvt. Ltd.) (the
‘Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting pohaes and other explanatory
information.

oo In our opinion and to the best-of our information and according to the explanations givento . :
gy, the aforesald "lnanCial statements give: the information reqt,ured by the: Companies ‘Act,” =

2013 (the ‘Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company

as at March 31, 2019 and its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
" in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Ruiles thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

GRS R
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S.P. Chopra & Co. Continuation Sheet

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors. are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial .

Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectivefhess of such controis.

-
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" Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirem

S.P. Chopra & Co. Continuation Sheet

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.. :

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued
by the

a) In our opinion, the remuneration paid by the Company to its Managing Directors is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

h) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

C) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books:

d) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income}, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

e) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014,

f) on the basis of the written r
March, 2019 taken on re

resentations received from the directors as on 31st
rd by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
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S.P. Chopra & Co. Continuation Sheet

disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

g) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure “B”.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeabie losses.

iif. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.P. CHOPRA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
_ Firm _Re_gn_. No. _0_00346_N :

Place : Mumbai (lew

Partner
ted: 03" May, 201 .
Dated ay, 2019 Membership No. 081859
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S.P. Chopra & Co. Continuation Sheet:

ANNEXURE-'A’' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph under *Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of the Independent Auditors’ Report
of even date on financial statements of CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advisory Services Pvt.
Ltd.) for the year ended 31st March, 2019)
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{D) In respect of its property, plant and equipments;

AR B L

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative detalils and situation of the property, plant and equipments.

R

b. As explained to us, the property, plant and equipments are physically verified
by the management once in a period of three years, which in our opinion is
reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its
property, plant and equipments. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such physical verification.

N R R
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. The Company does not hold any immovable property hence this clause is not
applicable.

(i) The Company does not hold any inventory or securities as stock in trade hence thlS
: clause is not appllcable ,

B :":.(i'i'i").‘"':_' The Company had ot granted Unsecured loans to companies covered in the eglster'._.::- I
" “ “maintained under Section 189 of the Compames Act, 2013, hence this clause is not
applicable.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act.

{(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meanings of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder to the extent notified,
hence this clause is not applicable.

{vi) Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is not
required to maintain cost records as specified under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of
the Act in respect of its products.

{vii) In respect of statutory dues:

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, in our opinion the Company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and
other statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities. According
to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 31% March,
2019 for a period of more than siX months from the date they became
payable.

Contd...p/2
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{viii)

(ix)

(%)

(xi)

{xii)

RO

{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 03" May, 2019

P2

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no amount
payable in respect of income tax, service tax, value added tax and other
material statutory dues that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

Based on the audit procedures and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not taken loans or borrowings from financial
institution, banks and Government, hence this clause is not applicable

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and termi loans.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or material fraud on the Company by its officers / employees
has been noticed or repotted during the course of our audit.

The managerial remuneration paid/ provided is within the limit and in compliance of
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company hence the requirement of this clause is not
applicable.

: -examlnatson of the: records of the Company, transactlons Wlth the related partles aret"""""' R
in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable. The details of

such transcations have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the
Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors or persons
connected with them.

As explained to us, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For'S.P. CHOPRA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000346N

Vipan Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 081859
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S.P. Chopra & Co. Continuation Sheet

ANNEXURE-‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph under *Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of the Independent Auditors’ Report
of even date on the financial statements of CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advisory Services Pvt.
Ltd.) for the year ended 31* March, 2019)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CARE Risk
Solutions Private Limited (Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and
Advisory Services Pvt. Ltd.) ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the "Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting” (the
“"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

assets, the preventlon and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obhtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Contd...p/2
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control ovér financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of thé assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and Directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

...Because. of the.inherent . limitations.of -intetnal financial :controls. ove

--misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.P. CHOPRA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 0003456N

Viéﬁﬁﬁr

Partner
Membership No. 081859

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 03" May, 2019
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CARE Rik Solutions Private Limited

(Farmerly kngwn as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advvisory Services Pvt Ltd)
CIN No:UT4210 MH1855PTCI18349

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2019

{Amount in Rs.}

. Year Ended Year Ended
ricul Neote No.
Particulars ote No. 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Income
Revente From Operations 20 15,49,10,967 9,89,12,135
Other Intome 21 25,98,791 8,711,773
Total Income 15,75,04,758 9,97,83,908
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense az 6,06,07,422 4,95,14,38)
Finance Cost 23 78,10,581 58,21,214 L&;
Depreciition and Amortisation Expense 2 22,28586 . 17,28,201 g
&
3
Cther Bxpenses 24 7,16,90,323 4,00,62,670 E
£
Total Expenses 14,23,36,913 9,71,31,466 %
Profit before Tax 1,51,72,845 26,52,442 %
Tax Expense
CurrentTax - - 4
Deferred Tax 22,08,737 {10,12,567)
Total Tax Expense 22,08,73% {10,12,567)
Surplues for the year 1,29,64,108 . . 36,65008 .. S
-JA (i) items that will not be reclassified to profit & Loss
Acturtal Gainf{Loss) et Defined Benefit Obligation {2,45,410} 2,771,236
{ii} Income tax refating to items that will not be reclassified to profitor loss 68,273 =77,127
8 (i) tems that will be reclassified to profit & Loss -
{ii) Income tax relating ta items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - g
Other Comprahensive lncome for the year {1,77,137) 2,00,109
Total Comprehenslve Income for the year 1,27,86,971 38,65,118
Earning Per Share (Face Vakie Rs.10/- each)
- Basic 1.62 0.46
- Diluted 1.62 0.46

Significant Accounting Pollcies and Notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of the i lal stat its

As per our Report of even date attached
Eor and on behalf of Board of Directors of

For §.. Chopra & Co. CARE Risk Solutiens Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd.No.0D0346N *
‘ e < -
Vipan Kumar Mehul Pandya Rajesh Mokashi Lalit Phophale
Partner Divactor Director Director
Membership No., 081859 DN No-07610232 DIN No-02781355 DIN No-05240078
Ly
/,— bl £
Urrlesh Jkhe Nitesh Poojarl Mano] Dhondge
Place: Murnbal Chief Executive Officer Chief Financlal Officer Company Secretary

Date: 03 May 2019 M.No. 134346 ACS 55592




CARE RikSelutions Private Limited

{Forrmtry known as CARE Kaypta Risk Technologies and Adwvisory Services Pvt Ltd)

TN No:U74210 MHALSASPTCLLEI49

Balanctiheet as at 31 March 2019

[Amount in Rs;)
Partkulars Note No.
As an 31 March 2015 As on 31 March 2013
ASSETS
Non Curent Assets
Froperty $lant and £quipment 2 28,738,150 18,68,327
Olher Intangible Assets 2 748,773 18,47,782
Financial Assets
Loans 3 24.57.681 10,50,000
Other Noh Current Financial Assets
Deferred Tax Assets {Net) 4 70,52,565 3 91,93,429
Total New-Current Assets 1,31,37,569 1,39,58,538
Current Assats
Financial Assets
Investments 5 514,926 25,03,198
Trade Receivables -3 3,95,16,812 1,71,61,650
Cash and Cash Equivafents 7 18,91,343 18,14,673
Bank Batances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 48,60,000 9,27,000
Loans 3 - 1,25,000
Other Curreat Financial Assets 10 495,234,391 3,81,93,545
Current Tax Assets (MNet) 11 1,03,04,457 46,32,450
Other Currant Assets r 87,76,680 66,13,533
Total Cuzent Assets 12,04,88,600 7,19,72,1G3
Total Asiets 13,35,26,178 8,59,31,647
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY B
Equity Share Capital B 8,01,35,000 . . 800,35,000
Othet Equity ET e 7m00e)| ... (738255200 -
- |Total Equity - -~ L T T - 63,09,480 | -
JusBIUMES. . - — e
*{Non-Curent Labilitles
Financial Uakilities
Borrowings 15 7,43,43,575 5,42,81,330
Provislons. 16 31,06,623 23,26,545
Total Non-Current Liabllities 7,44,50,598 5,66,07,875
Current Labilities
Financial Liabilities
Dther Financial Liabilities 17 47,63,397 23,2430
Other Current Liabllities 13 3,50,17,159 2,01,52,387
Peovisions 19 4,38,030 537,585
Total Current Labilities 4,02,18,586 2,30,14,232
Totak Equity and Liabilties 13,36,25,178 8,59,31,647

Significant Accounting Policles and Notes 1 to 25 forman Integral part of the financlal statements

As per aut Report of even date attached

For 5.P, Chopra & Co.
{hartered Accountants
Firm Regd.Ne.000346N

Vipan Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 081859

Place: Mumbal
Date: 03 May 2029

For and an behalf of Board of Directors of
CARE Risk Solutions Private Limitad

#ehul Pandya Rajesh Mokashi Lalit Phophal

Director Director Directar

DIN No-07610232 DIN No-02781355 [N No-05240078 -
Umeash Ik Hitesh Paofari Mano] Dhandge

Chief Executive OHicer Chief Financial Officer Company Sacretary

M.No. 134346 ACS 55592
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CARE RitkSalutions Privets Limked
{Formorown as CARE Kalypto Risk Technolagles and Adwisory Services Put Lid)
CIN N& 113210 MH1599PTCLLEIAS

Statars18tof cash flowd for the year anded March 31, 2019

Fol tha Year wndud For the Yesr ended
AN arr2oits in Rupees, unless stherwise stated) Ierch 51, 2019 March 33, 2018
ram O ] Hvitins
Profit Beles tax 1,51,72,845 26,552,042
AdlusTenu; for
Other Comprehensive Incame {2,45,410) -
interest Incare on Fixed Deposit 5,27,825) (1,5%,467)
Interest o loan {13,775} -
Inceme fom Invastments {32,015) (2.01,840)
Profit @nsle f redemption of favestments - -
Deferredimployee Stock Optlon . .
UnreallsedFareign Exchange (Galn) / Loss {76,475} 139,829
Invalue of - -

Provisionkr Compensated Absence {B1,001) (4,02,124)
Provislon kr Gratuity {1,77,137) 4,66,083
Provisionke Bad Debts 795215 -
Bad Debiwriten off - .
Loss ofv Sit of Fixed Assets - -
Finance Epenses 78,10,561 58,721,214
Depraciaton and Amortization Expense 22,268,586 17,283,201
Dpratitif rofit befor working capital changes. 2,38,51,589 1,01,51,328
Ploveryvett in working capital

i In Trad {2,21,48,377) 39,24,082
Decreasefincrease] in Other Men Curzent Assols -
Decrease/increase] n Dther Current Financlal Assets {1,14,79,845) {1,57,45,276)
Decreasefincreass] in Other Cument Assets (21,53,087) (3,72,329)
Increase/(Decreasa) in Provislons for Non Curent Lisbllfties 10,25,48% -
Decr A In Other Curmant da 3 Iablit 24,35,077 (32,20,161)
Dect i in Other 4 1,484,773 470,654
IncreasefiPecrease] in Provislons for Current Liabilitias {18,554} .
jTatal Moviments In warking capital {K,84,30,527) {1,48,23,719)
[ Taxes pald {57,40,280); (9,17,937)
Nt cush from oparating activitles 6,80,782 {56,00,328)}

. |1 Ca: st 0

Income from fnvestmants s

i

i Eo

- [Fixgd Dieposit T : : c S [
Purchase of fixed atsets ’ {21,39,400) {20,96,056)
Purchase efinvestments £25,14,026} {97,01,810}
Sale of investments. 45,03,109 1,52,00,000
Net cazh from knvessing activities. (&5,24,285) 37,56,411
101 cash flow ffrom fosncing activities
Proceeds from Issue of preterence shares .
Pald as securlty deposit {14.07,683)

Amounts given on Loan - .
Amounts emowed 1,00,00,000 .
Amounts repaid 1,25,000 -
Interest &nloan {7.35161) .
Increase/{decrease) In Reserves & Surplus - -
Dividend and Dividend Tax pald {52,982) -
Interim Dividend and Dividend Tax pald N -
Net cach fom financing activitles 79,20,174 .
Effacts of Unrealisad Exchangs gain on Cash & Cash Equivalents - .
Jd ) In cash and eash 16,670 {18,43,517)

Cazh And Cach Egulvalants At The Beginaing 18,14,673 36,58,590
Cash And Cash Equivafants At The End 15,91 343 18,109,673
Cash wnd cash aqulvalents compeiss of: {Refar Nota 7}
Cash on hand 344 3,561
‘Cheques In hand . -
Othar Bank balancas

O Current Account 14,687,894 10,323,011

Deposit Accounts 4,03,106 7,681,701
Total 18,591,243 1E,14,673

Slgnificant Accounting Pollclas and Kotes 1 to 25 form an Integra! part of tha financial statements

As par our Repoct of aven date attached

For 5.P. Chapra & Co. For and o bahalf of the Borrd of Directars of
Charterad Accountants CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited
Firm Ragd.Ho.0003456N

Vipan Kumar Mahul Pandys RaJesh Mokszhi Lalit Pophale
Partrar Diractor Director Directar
Marnbarship No. 081353 DIN No-DT610237 DIN No-02781355 DIN No-05240076
- e
-
- ] N Poajarl ano] Dhandge
Place: Mumbal Chief Exacutiva OHicer Chief Financisl Officar CoOMpany Sacratary

Pate: 03 May 2013 M.No. 124346 ACS 55592




CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited

{Formerty kivown as CARE Kalypto Risk Technalogies and Advvizory Services Pt Ltd}
CIN Ko : UT4210 MH1339PTC118349

Standafone Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2019

B2
e
L
|1
T
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Statement of Changes in Equity

l

A, Equlty Share Capital

3
i3

Slgnificant Accatniting Polities and Notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of the financlal statements

As perour Report of even date attached

For 5.P. Chopra & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charterad Accountants CARE Risk Solutions Private Limitad
Firm Regd No.G0O346N

Lb —— ¢F

Mehul Pandya Rajesh Mokashi Lalit Pophale

Director Director Director

DIN tlo-07610232 DIN No-Q2781355 LN No-05240078

: é/,b‘bf
' -

Umesh [k 3 Witesh Poojarl anof Dhondge
Place; Mumbal Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
Date: 03 May 2019 M.Na, k34346 ALS 55592

For the year ended 31 March, 2019 k;
{Amount Rs.) g
=
Balance az at Apri, 01, 2012 Changes [n Equity Share Capital during the year Balance as at 31 March, 2019 %‘
£,01,35,000 - 8,01,35,000
For the year endad March 31, 2018
{Amount fis.)
Bal;
Balance as at April, 01, 2017 Chanzes In Equity Share Capital during the year alance as at 31 March, 2013
£,01,35,000 - 8,01,35,000
[
B. Other Equity g
i
For the yzar ended March 31, 2019 {Amaunt Rs.} E:“_.
Reserves & Suplus y;%
- &
Particulars Equity Comgpanent of Total Equity 5
Campound financlal Retalned Earnings A
instrument =
Balance as at 01 April, 2012 15,385,265 17,53,60,785) 17,38,25,520} Fx
Traasfer (to) / from Retained Earnings (1,39.457) (1,39,457} =
Other Comprehensive lncome/{loss) for the year -
Profit for the year {1} - 1,29,64,108 1,29,64,108
Remeasurement gainf{loss) an defined benefit plan {2} - {377.127) (4,77,137) =
Other Comprehensive lncome/{foss) for the year (3) - - - i
Total Other Comprehensive Incore/{loss) for the year [1+243) . 1,27,86,971 1,27,86,971
as at 31 March, 2019 15,35,265 I6,27.33,21) 16,11,78,008)
Resceves & Suplus
Particutars Equity Component of , Total Equity
i Compound Bnancial Retained Earnings L L
“{Balance asat 03 April, 2047 - 171 45;35,265 (752,25, 905} ~ >0 (AIBBOSRAY| e T e e
Other Gnmpr&hm.ﬂv.a Incame/{lois) for the year
Prolit for the year (1} - 35,87,884 35,87,884
Remeasurement gainf{ioss) on defined benefit plan (2} - 2,717,236 2,177,236
Other Comprehensive Ircome/{foss) for the year (3} - -
Total Other Comprehensive Incomef{less} for the year [14243) - 38,65,120 38,65,120
I ast at 31 March, 2018 15,35,265 7,53,60,785): (7,38,25,520)




CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited
{Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advvisory Services Put Ltd)
CIN No: U74210 MH1983PTC118349

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2015

Note 1 (A%
Lompany Overview and Significant Accounting Policles

Lompany Overview:

CARE Risk Selutions Private Limited {formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advisery Private Limited,) [the Company’] was incorporated on December 15, 2005, The Company is
Involved in developing spechalised risk management solutions addressing the ereas of credit risk and aperational risk for financial institutions, banks and Insurance companies, The companyis 2
wholly owned subsidiary of CARE Ratings Uimited {formerly known as Credit Analysis and Research Limited.)

Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies:
a}  statement of Compliance
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified tader the Companies {Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from

time to time, the relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”} and guidelines issued by the Securlties and Exchange Board of India {SEBI}, as ar.;plicab!e.

W) Bagls of preparation of Accounts

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the faliowing assets and liabilities:
i Certain financlal assets and liabifities measured at fair value
il Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarfal valuation;

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a iiability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using anather valuation technique. In determining the falr value of an asset o a Fability, the Company takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or fiabllity if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or lability at the measurement date.

¢} Functional and Presentation Cursency:

The finandial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Cornpany cperates,

Classification of Assets and Lfakllitles into Current/Non-Current
The Company hes ascertained ts operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Currentf Nen-Current classification of its Assets and Liabilities.

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current If:
i It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or
il Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
il Itis expected to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting periad; or
v The assetis a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted fram being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve maonths after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as nan-current.

Sirnllarly, 3 liability Is classified as current if:
- Itis expected to he settled in the normal ops
Jtis heid. prlmarllyforthe pu{posenftradi
It s due'to be settled wzthln twelv months afv.er the repnrung pefipd; or . . .
“iv . The Company does not have an unconditianal fight to defer the settiement of the Ilabillty fnr at teast twelve months after the repnrtlng panad Terms of a liahility :hat could result In #ts
settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does nat affect this classification.
All other fabilities are classified as nan-current,

d}  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreclation and impairment oss, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition for its intended use. Expenditure Incurred after the PPE have been put into operations, such as repalrs and malntenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit & Lass in the
perTod In which the costs are incurred.

e}  Capitai Work In Progress
Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified as capital advances under other nen current assets and cost of the assets not to use before such date
are disclosed under Capital Work in Progress.

f}  Depreciation
Depreciation / amartisation is provided on all Property, Plant & Equipments on written down value methed, at rates at which 55% of the cost of the assets is written over the balance useful life of
the assets spacified in Schedule ! of the Companies Act, 2013 except for leasehald improvements which are written off over the {ease period.
Depreciation on additions is being provided on Pro rata basis from the date of such additions,
Depreciation on sale or disposal is provided on Pro rata basis till the date of such sale or disposal.

g)  Intangibie Assets and Amortization
Intangible assets are accounted at fair value based on evaluation reports of experts less accumulated amertization and accumulated impairment losses thereon, if any. An intangible asset is
recognized, where it i5 probable that the future econemic benefit attributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and where its costs can be rellably measured.

Intangible assets in the nature of computer software & software deveopment are stated at their cost of acquisition iess accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The useful life of
computer software is determined at 3 years.

h}  impairment of Non-Financial Assets — Property, Plant and Equipment & intangible Assets
The cartying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date If there Is any Indicaticn of Impairment based on internal/ external factors, An asset is treated as impaired when the
carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cast of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing Impairment,
non- financial assets are greuped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash Inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows fram other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there Is an Indication that impairment losses recognized for the assets no longer exist or
have decreased.

7} Financial Instruments
Financial Assets & Financial Labilities are recognized when the Company becomes party te contractual provisions of the relevant instrument.

Initial Recognition:

Al financiaj assets and liakilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial lfabilities, which are
not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initfal recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition or Issue of financial assets or financial Ilabilities at
fair value through profit or loss at recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited
{Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologles and Advvisary Services Pt Ltd)
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Notes to the financia! statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

k)

m)

n)

;. or cancelled or expires.

Note 1 (A}

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets
The Company classifies financTal assets as subsequently measured at Amartised Cost, Fair Value through Other Camprehensive Income (“FYTOCI®) or Fair Valus through Profit or Loss ["FVTPL")
on the bass of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortized Cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset glve rise on specifiad dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

FVTQCE
A financal asset is measured at FYTOC! if It is held within a business mode! whose objective is achieved by both collacting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financia! asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of principal and Interest en the principal amouns outstanding,

F/TPL:
Aflnancial asset which Is not classified in any of the above categaries are measured at FYTPL.

Classification and Subsequent Measurgment: Financial Liakilities
Financial liabflities are classified as either financial liakilitles at FYTPL or “Other Financial Liabilities’.

Financia$ Liabllities at FVTPL:

Financial lizbilities are classified as at FVTPL when the finandial liability s held for trading or are desigrated upon initizl recognition as FVTPL: Gains or Losses on labilities held for trading are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Uther Financial Liabilities:
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at Amortised Cost using the effective interest method. For the lial
amounts approximate falr value due to the short maturity of these instruments,

es maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with ind AS 108, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL} model, for evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss
(FYTPL). Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal ta:

The 12-months expected credit lesses {expected credit losses that result from those default events an the financial instrument that are possible within 12 menths after the reparting date); or Full
lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit fosses that result fram all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument)

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified appreach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the recefvables, The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. The Company czlculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using  provision matrix on the basis of its
histarical credit Igss experience,

Derecogaition of financial assets:

at asset when the contractuzl rights to the cash flows from the financlal asset expire or it transfers the Tinancidt -
ancial fiabikity. {or a pat of a financial liability) Js.d

set and the transfer qualifies for

ognition under Ind'AS 105,

‘Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to Tnsigniflcant risk of changes iri value and are held for
the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from fixed-price contracts Includes License fees, impl naticn and customisation fees,

License, Impl ion and G4 isatinn fees are r ised on proportionate work completion basis as per the terms of the contract. Proportion of work completion is determined as a
proportion of costs incurred ta date to the total estimated cost to complete the contract. Provision for expected loss is recognised immediately when It Is prabable that the total estimated costs
will exceed total contract value,

Fee from other services are accounted for on accrual basis

Revenue from maintenance contracts is recoghlsed over the term of maintenance.

Dividend Income
Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Less anly when the right to receive payment is established, it s probable that the economic berefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Sale/Redemption of Investments

Difference between the sale price and fair value of investment as determined at the end of the previous year is recognised as profit or loss on sale / redemption on Investment on trade date of
transaction.

Lease
Leases zre classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially ail the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other ieases are classified as Operating
Leases.

QOperating Lease: Lease rentals are charged or recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a stralght-line basis over the lease term, except where the payments are structured to increase in
iine with expected general inflaticn to compensate for the expected inflationary costincrease,

Finance Leasa: Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the Inception of the lease ar, if iower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The carresponding lisbility to the lessor is included in the Balance Sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are appertioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease cbligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company's policy on horrowing costs.

Translation of Farelgn Currency Items

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Forelgn currency denominated monetary assets and liabllities are restated into the
functional currency using exchange rates prevalling on the Balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
Irabilitles are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, Non- monetary assets and lizbillties that are measured in terms of historial cost of foreign currencies are not transfated.

ted fram the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the:contrct I discharged .




CARE Risk Selutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advvisory Services Put Ltd)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

o}

p)

q

. Current tax 2ssets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pald to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws thal
-+ enacted at the Balance sheet date -+ - . y R s . L

" Deferred tax

Note 1 {A):

Employee benefit axpense
Defined benefit plan:

has

The Company pays gratulty to the | ! five years of service with the Company at the time of reslighation/superannuation,
The lability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be
derived from employees’ services.

Re-measurement of defined benetit plans in respect of past-employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive [ncome. Re-measurement recognised in OCI is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will nat be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

The present value of the defined beneflt plan llability is calculated using a discount rate which s determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting peticd on government
bonds,

The defined benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit ar surplus in the Company’s defined beneflt plans. Any surplus resulting fram this calcwlation Is Hmited
to the present value of any economic benefits avallable in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions In future contrisutions to the plans.

Defined contribution plan:
Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respact of provident fund, for which both the employees and the Company make monthly cantributions at a specified
percentage of the covered emplayees’ salary. The contributions as specified under the law are made to the Government Pravident Fund monthly.

Other Employee Beaefits

A liability Is recognised for benefits aceruing to employees in respect of wages and salarfes, annual leave in the period the refated service is rendered. Uabilities recognised In respect of shert-
term employee benefils are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid In exchange for the refated service. Liabilities recognised In respect of ather lang-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reparting date. .

Income Taxes:
The tax expense for the perdod cemprises cusrent and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the comprehensive
Income ar in equity. in which case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive incame or equity.

Current tax

tax bases used in the computation of

Deferred tax is recognized an temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial st and the carr
taxable profit.

Tax relating to iters recognised directly in equity or CCl is recognised [n equity or OCI and not in the Statement of Prafit and Loss. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legaliy

enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabitities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they intend to to settle current tax lishillties and assets on a net
basis or their tax assets and liabilties will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tox asset Is recognized to the extent itis probable that future taxakle profits will be availzble 2gainst which the temporary diffference can be utilised. The carrying amount of Deferred
tax llabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable.

Earnings Per Share
The basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS") is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equlty shares
outstanding during the year,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year attributable to the equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions, Conti Liabilities and Cantingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has 2 present chligation {legal or constructive] as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources emhodying economic benefits
will be required te settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of the cbligation.

If the effect of the time value of money Is materlal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessement of time value of manhey and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cast. Pravisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liahilities are also disclosed when there is a possible ebligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the eccurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not whelly within the contro! of the Company, Claims against the Company where the possibility of any cutflow of resources in settlement is remate, are not

dicclaced bl

as

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never ke realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the refated asset is not a contingent asset and s recognised.

Segment Reparting - Identification of Segments:
An operating segment is a companent of the Company that engages in business activitles from which It may earn reverues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by
the company's management to make decisions for which discrete financial Information is available.

Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the management evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of varicus perfermance
indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

are enacted or substantively
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CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited
{Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advvisory Services Pvt Ltd)
CIN No ; U74210 MH1999PTC118349

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

a)

b)

<

d}

"'-.'-..vaiuatmns. An actuanal valuatlon lnvolves makmg various : assumptlons that -may -differ From -actual- developments ]

Note 1[B): Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Uncertainty abeut these assumptlons and estimates
couid result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets o liabilities affacted in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions te accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting pelicies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

Useful Lives of Property, Plant & Equipment:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry treads for determining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The
useful lives are reviewed by management pericdically and rewsed if apprepriate, In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged gver
the remaining useful life of the assets.

Expected Credit Ensses on Financial Assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial asset. In case of trade raceivables, the Company follows the simplified
approach permitted by Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance, The application of simplified appreach does not
require the Company to track changes in ¢redit risk. The Company calculates the expacted credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the
basis of its historical credit loss experience.

Revenue
Revenue is recognised using the percentage of the completion method. The percentage of completion is estimated based on the proportions of the costs

incurred to date & total estimated cost to complete the projact,

Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit gratmty plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation and gther employment b

" determination of the discount rate, future salaryincreases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its iong term nature, a

defined benefit obfigation is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions., All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

fits are, determ_ined'using actuarial
“the-future.- These mclude the
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CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited

[Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advvisory Services Pyt
Ld}

CiN No : U74210 MHZ999PTC118349

Note 13
Equity Share Capital

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2013

As at 31 March, 2018

Number

Amount (Rs.}

Number Amount [Rs.}

Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

1,00,00,000

80,13,500

10,00,00,000

1,00,00,000 10,00,0C,000

{formerly known as Credit Analysis and Research Limlted)

8,01,35,000 80,13,50¢ 8,01,35,000
Total 8,01,35,000 8,01,35,000
13(a}: List of shareholders holding more than 5% of Paid Up Equity Share Capital
- As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2018
Particulars
Nos. % Halding Nos. % Halding
CARE Ratings Ltd 80,13,500 10C.00% 80,13,500 100.00%

13{b}: The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out helow:

Asat 31-Mar-19

Particulars As at 31-Mar-18
Nos, Nos.
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 80,13,500 80,13,500
Issued during the year
Equity Shares at the end of the year 80,13,500 80,13,500

E2(c): Ferms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 1¢ per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote pershare.
All Equity shares are held hy CARE Ratings Ltd [formerly known as Credit Analvsls and Research Limited), 2 holding company along with its nominees.

Inthe eve_n_t_p_f_llquldallon of the Company,. the. holders.of equity. shares will be entn:led to receive rema ng assets of the Cumpanv, afterdlstrlbutlon of aII preferentlal amounts |f any The

o fdistnbutuon will be in prapomon to the numher of eqmty shares heIu‘ hy the shareholders

; : The dlvldend proposed bv the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharehalders in the ensulng Annual General Meeting except incase of Interim Dividend.

Note 14
Other Equity

{Amount Rs.)

Particulars As at As 2t
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Surplus in the staternent of profit and loss {6,27,13,271} (7.53,60,785)
Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrument 15,35,265 15,35,265
Total Other Equity {6,11,78,006) {7,38,25,520)

Description of Other Equity:
Equity Component of Compound Financial Instrument {Refer Note 40}

Under Ind AS 32, the Company has to split compound financial Instruments into separate equity and liability compenents. This reserve represents the equity compenent of the Optionally

Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference.
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CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited

{Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technologies and Advisory Services Pvt Ltd)

CIN No : U74210 MH1999PTC118349

Note 3
Loans - Non - Current

Particulars As on As on
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unsecured and Considered Good
Loan to Employees - -
Security Deposits 24,57,681 10,50,000
Total 24,57,681 10,50,000
Note 4
Deferred Tax Asset
Particulars Ason As on
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Deferred Tax Asset
MAT Credit Entitlement 52,18,700 52,18,700
Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipments 2,59,270 15,49,285
15,74,995 . 24,25,444

Expenditture allowed under tax on p_ayme__nt_ba_sis:

- 70,52,965

91,93,429

- {Tetal |

Note 5
Investments - Current
As on As on

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

investment in Mutual Funds - Unquoted

(valued at Fair value through Statement of Profit & Loss}

Investment in Various Open - Ended Debt Mutual Funds

5,14,926

25,03,198

Total Current Invetsments

5,14,926

25,03,198
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‘Note 6
Trade Receivables

As on

. As on
Particulars
) March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
|YUnsecured, Considered Good (Refer Note 6,1)

- Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months 1,12,61,881 19,04,068
- Other Debts 2,82,54,931 1,52,57,582
Total Debtors (Considered Good) 3,85,16,812 1,71,61,650
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful

- Debts ofs for a period exceeding six months 35,76,220 41,44,203
-Other Debts -
Total Debtors (Considered Doubtful) 35,76,220 41,44,203
Total Debtors 4,30,93,032 2,13,05,853
Less: Allowances for Credit Losses 35,76,220 41,44,203
Total 3,95,16,812 1,71,61,650

6.1 Due to short-term nature of current receivahles,their carrying amount is assumed to be same as their fair value.

Note 7
Cash and Cash Equivalents

TAson

. .0,
. March 31, 2019 March'31, 2018
“[Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 344 3,961
Balances with Banks
-0On Current Account 14,887,894 10,259,011
Other Bank Balances
- Deposit Accounts 4,03,106 7,81,701
Total 18,91,343 18,14,673
Note 8
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars Ason As on
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Lienmarked Deposit 98,60,000 9,27,000
Total 98,60,000 9,27,000
Note 9
Loans - Current
particulars As on As on
articd March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unsecured and Considered Good
Loans 1o Employees - 1,25,000

Total

1,25,000
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Note 10
Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars As on As on
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest Accrued on Investments 4,19,593 22,575
Others - 2,65,176
Unbilled Revenue 4,92,04,798 3,79,06,755
Total 4,96,24,391 3,8%,94,545
Note 11
Current Tax Assets - Net
. As on Ason

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Advance taxes & TDS 1,03,04,457 46,32,450
{Net of Provisions)
Total 1,03,04,457 46,32,450
Note 12
Other Current Assets

Particutars - S : Asom ;.. . .ofsen :

S ! ) - e e ' March 3152019 - MaETEH 312018 -
- InterestAccrued on Loans to Employees IR I

Other Receivables (53,508) -
Prepaid Expenses 20,55,140 12,50,748
GST, Other taxes and Statutory Deposits 44,78,598 49,26,250
Other Advances 22,96,540 4,36,555
Total 87,76,680 66,13,593




Note 15
Barrowings
. As on As at
Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Borrowing 6,13,43,975 5,42,81,330
Interest componenet Rs. 1.28cr (Refer Note 25.15)
Unsecured Loan 1,00,00,000 | ) -
Total 7,13,43,975 5,42,81,330
Note 16
Provisions
. Ason As at
Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity 31,06,623 23,26,545
Total 31,06,623 23,26,545
Note 17
Other Current Financial Liabilities
Particulars As an As at
: March 31, 2019 - _ March 31, 2018
Pay & Commission 27,355,080 £ .
. n E 19,20,906
Other Liabilities 87,411
Total 47,63,397 23,24,320
Refer Note 25.12 for due to Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises.
Note 18
Other Current Liabilities
Particulars As on As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unearned Revenue 2,09,06,664 1,09,30,114
Advance from customers 1,12,547 6,74,450
Statutory Dues 18,65,629 7.83,347
Provision for Expenses 1,21,32,320 77,064,476
Total 3,50,17,159 2,01,52,387
Note 19
Provisions
As at
Particulars As on

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Provision for Employee Benefits

Provisicn for Compensated Absence 3,46,430 4,27,431
Provision for Gratuity - Current Liability 91,600 1,10,154
Total 4,38,030 5,37,585
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CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited

{Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Tethnologies and Advisory Services Pyt Ltd)

CIN No : U74210 MH1999PTC118349

Note 20
Revenue From Qperations

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Sale of Serviceg e
Sale of Licences and services 15,11,98,445 9,54,59,305
Fee for Consultancy Services 36,75,857 34,03,419
Cther Operating Revenue 36,665 49,411
Total 15,49,10,967 9,89,12,135
Note 21
Other Incame
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Income from Investments 32,015 2,01,810
Interest income on deposit with banks 5,27,825 1,52,467
Notional Income on Fair Value of Security Deposits 32,850 -
Foreign Exchange Gain 16,64,299 | . .. 2,23,525
- ' Miscelianeous Income, 3. ¢ - 345,802 o 293,970
ClTatal e et TR 98,791 |- g LA
Note 22
Employee Benefits Expense
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salarles and Cther Allowances 5,64,47,154 4,60,47,216
Contribution to Provident, Gratuity & Other Funds (Refer Note 25.3) 36,77,714 32,21,094
Staff Welfare Expenses 4,82,554 2,46,071
Total 6,06,07,422 4,95,14,381
Note 23
Finance Cost
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest on borrowings 78,10,581 58,21,214
Interest on borrowings - Rs. 70,62,645/- (Refer Note 25.15)
Interest on unsecured loan - Rs.7,47,936/-
Total 78,10,581 58,21,214
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Note 24

Other Expenses
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Electricity Charges 5,859,130 5,53,940
Telephone, Postage and courler 7,280,305 7,73,952
Rent 31,856,407 26,82,831
Amortisaticn of Deferred Lease Expenses 41,039 -
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 1,93,06,615 1,31,66,889
Directors' Sitting Fees 50,000 40,050
insurance Premium 27,451 1,63,907
Legal Expenses 10,112 20,530
Professional Fees 66,18,596 25,64,663
Rates & Taxes 2,32,700 36,08,137
Repairs & Maintenance 7,97,305 4,68,199
Commission 3,62,00,554 1,27,43,760
Advertisement Expenses 1,95,000 -
Security, Housekeeping & Office Supplies 6,73,869 5,45,550
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 7,93,215 4,58,723
- Audit Fees 5,00,000 5,00,000
- Tax Audit Fees 50,000 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 16,38,025 17,756,539
Total 7,16,90,323 4,00,67,670




CARE Risk Solutions Private Limised

[Formerly known as. CARE Xalypto Risk Technologies and Advvlsory Services Pyt L1d]
€I No : U74210 MH1998PTC118349

Notes to the finzncial statemants for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 25.1: Cont[ngen; Llakiities find AS 37}

v, Glabms epalnst the ecknovdedgod ay.

Particulars AsRECl | 0 Aset
okl - March 31,20 ~ Mnrch 31, 2048

Cantingent Liability on 2ccount of lncome Tax -

The Cempany's pending Iikigations camprise of proceedings pendlng with Income Tax sutheritles. The Company has reviewed all its pending Itigations
and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the liablilties where in its
flnanclal statements, The Company does not expect the outcame of these proceedings to have a materlally adverse effect on its flnanctat results

.Guarontees ziven by Bark on hehalf of the Company In raiect oRs. 98,60,000/ {March 31, 2012 - Rs. 8,351,081}

Mote 25.2; Capital and other commitnyants

Estimated amount of contracts remalning to be executed on capltal account, nat provided for [net of advances) s T NN {March 31, 2013 - Nii)

The Campany has a arocess whereby periadically all long term cantracts are assessed for materfal foreseaable lasses. At the year end, the Campany has
reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any lawy: i for material 1 ble losses on such long term
cantracts has been made in the books of account

ote 25,5t Emplayee Banefits I
A}, Def efit Plans:

Grotdlty:

The gratulty payable to employses s hased on the employee’s service and last drawn salery at the time of [eaving the services of the Company and is ln
accerdance with the rules of the Company far payment of gratulty. The Company fallows pay a5 you go methad for settling the llablilty

The plan Is deflned In nature which Is sponsored by the Company and hance it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, this
exposes the Company ta actuarial fisk such as adverse salary growth, change in return on undi Pplan assets.
This may result in an Increase Tn cost of providing these benedlls to the employess in fulure. Siace the beneflts are lump sum in nature, the plan is not
subleet te any longevity rlsk.

Iarket Risk

Market Risk is 4 collective term for risks that are related ta the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One acutarial assumption that has a
rmaterlal effect [5 the discount rate, The discount rate reflects the time value of maney. Any increase in discount rates leads to dacrease [n Defined
Benefit Gbligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the ylelds on the coparcate/government bonds and hanca the
valuation of Hablfty 5 exposed to fluctuations [n the ylelds as at the valuation date.

Statermunt of Assets ang abilities for Dofined Benefit Objigation &5 on Werch 31, 2019;

(Amount Rs.)
LU antgs
Defined Banefit Obligation 31,98.273.00

Fair Valup of Assets -

[i} Change in Prozant vatus of Obligations: " ".. R . o
- Openirg Defined Benefit Obligation - . 24,36,698

19.70.656

Current Service Cast 7,19,698 6,88,855
interast Cost 1,74,856 152,046
Actuarlal (Galn)/Loss 245,360 [2.77.926)
Benefits Pald (3.78.389) 96,923}
Closing Defined Senalit Obligations 31,98,273 24,36,698
[t} Change In Falr¥alkue of Plan Assets:
Cpenlag Fair Value of the Plan Assets - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Actuarial Galnf{Loss) - B
Contribution by the Employer 378,389 95,923
Benelits Paid 13,78,380) 95923
Closing Fair Value of the Plan Assets - -
[/IF} Net Asset / {Liability) recognized in the Balsnce Sheet
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of 31498223 24.36.698
Falr Value of Flan Assals - -
Net Asset f {Liakillty) 31,98.223 24,365,658

{Iv} Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Service Cost 719,698 6,88,855
Interest on Delined Benafit - .
Expected Return on Plan Assets

Amount recogrized In Stateraent of Profit and Lass FETYT] 638,855 |
{v} R in Other € h lacame (CCI}:

Changes in Financlal Assumplions 3,B1.006 {171,857

Changes in Demographlc N

Experience Adjustments [77.982), 1{1,06,278)

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Amaunt in Other Cx Incoma(OCH} 30303 12 77.335\)
{w1) Mueurity Profile of Defined Benaflt Obligatlon:

Within the next 12 manths 91,600 110,154

Between 1 and § vears 2,80,415 402,794

Berween § and 10 vears 457,842 505,850

10 Years and above 23,6B,266 ) 14,456,833
fwiy analysls for i

Intrease/{Decrease) on present value of defined benefits

1% Increase In discount rate 77.97,200 21,87.417|

1% decrease n discount rate 36,83,503 27.33,417|

1% Increase In salary eicalation rate 35,244,908 28,866,265

1% decrease In salary escalation rate 18.66.053 21,93,439

1% Increase In emplovee turnover 31.98.445 24,57,160

1% docredse in emplovee turnover 31,945,346 24,10.877
[vlil} The major categories of plan assots a5 o percentage of total pian: -

Kl Actuerlal Assumptions:

Discount Rate {p.a.} 1.78% 7.91%
Expected Return on Plan Assets. - -
Turnover Rate 5%| 5%

Martality tabl Indlan Assured Lives| Indian Assured Lives

eriaiity tables Mortolity| 2006-08}]  Mortality(2006-08}
Salary Escalation Rata (p.a.} 7% 4%
Retirement age 5% €0]

Weighted Aversg

18.09] 14,45:




CARE Rish Sclutions Privete Uimited

{Formerly known as CARE Kalypio Risk Technologles and Adyvisary Services Pvi Lid)

€I No : U74210 MH1999PTC118349

Notes to thae flaanclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

The Sensltivitles Analyses have been calculated to show the mavament In defined beneflt obllgation in Isofation and assuming thera are ne other
changes [n market conditions at the 2ctounting date.

Salary Escolation Aate:

Salary Escalation rate takes account of Inflation, sariorlty, promotion and cther ralevant factors, such as supply and demand In the employment market.

{B). Compensated Absences:

The compensated absences cover the Company's {labllity in respect of leaves to the eitent which emplovee are allowed to carry forward, The Rabliity
Is provided based on actuals.

{C} Definnd Contributlon Flans:

Amount recognizad as an expense and included In Note 22 under the head “Contribution ta Provident and other Funds™ of Statement of Profit and
Loss is % 36,77,714/- (Previoys Year T 28,43,858/- )

Mata 25.4; Keloted Party Disclosures {ind AS 24):

A) List af Related #nrties where contrel axists:

R Faturs of -
Mome of falated Parties - < Ratatlonshlp | As w1 March 51, 2019 | % 2 Mereh
S S 1, 2018
Dltimate Holding Company:
CARE Ratings Limited Halding Company 100%| 160%

(B} Other Related Partles with whom thara were teansacifons during tha yasr:

- Nome.of Refatéd Partia Nature of i{::e_l_n'_thnsh[p‘
Key Managemant Parsannal:

Rajesh Makashl Chalrman
Mehul Pandya Dlrector
Lallc Pophale Dlrector
Umesh Ikkhe Chiaf Executive Officer
Khtesh Poojari Chief Financial Oifker
Manof Dhonidge Company Secretary

£
&
&

FEA At

b
T

e

TR

TR




CARE Risk Selutions Private timited

{Formerly known as CARE Kelypto Risk Technologies and Advulsory Servicas Pyt Ltd)

CIN No 1 U74210 MHL959PTCL18349

Notas 1¢ tha flnanclal statements far ths vaar ended March 31, 2019

[C) Follawlng transections were carrled cut with tha related partles In the ordinary caurse of business:

B c g cl T S I Naturepf- E T Asat Morel 31, | A ot March:
Nama of the Compahy i Relationship. Traniactiont o1 2019w | 31, z0u
Holding Company Income framy
CARE Ratings Lmited Services 90,57,552 45,54,392
(tormeriy known ak Crealt Anelysis end Rasoarch Relmbyrsement ot
Limted) expenses 1,52,520 498,701
Advance recelved
and repald during
the year - -
Loan received and
repald during the
vear - -
Interest Incurred on
Loan 747,936 -
Professional fees
recelved - -
in
Preferenca Shares - -
Chief Exacutive Officer  [Managerial v
Umesh Ikhe from 13-05-2017 Remuneration 66,23,462 48,72,803
Relmbursement of
Expenses B,32,706 542,780
{0} Gutstanding balances:
R B R R A bt March
Name of the Company .- 2 Relationship - . aiiz0ie v
CARE Ratings Limited Receivable towards
(formerly known as Cred(t Analys's and Research fconsultancy
Limited) Holding Company Services 11,04,775 1548,18¢
Payable towards
relmbursement - -
Equity Shares - -
Barrowings 1,00,00,000 -
Preferance shares 6,13,43,875 542,81,330
Ho amount In respect of the related parties have been wiltten off/back are provided for during the year. Related party relationship have been
identlfled by the management and relied upan by the auditors.
[E) C of Key | of the Company:
Nature of Transsction/Relatianship s orch 51,2019, | - A0t March 3L,
Shart Tarm Employee Banefits 66,23,862 49,72,803
Gther Lang Tarms Benefits - -
Directors Sitting feas 40,000 40,050
Total Compensatloh 65,63,462 50,12,853

Remuneratian does not Include provision made for compensated absence, leave travel allowancs, gratulty since the same Is provided for the tompany
as a whale basad on independent aétuarlal valuation excopt to the extent of amount pald. .

¥ ..:-..Pl_-.. .

A) Basle EPS
{id et Prafit attributable to Equity Shareholders {Amount Rs.} 1,29,64,108 35,87,882|
(i) Welghted average number of Equity shares oulstanding (Nos.) 50,13.500/ £0.13.500]
Basle Earnines Per Share (/i) 1.67 0.45]

B} Diluted £p3
(i} Weighted average number af Equity sharas outstanding (Nes.} 2013 500 RD.12.500|

if) Add: Potentlzl Equlty Shares on exercize of option (Nas,) - -
i} Welghted average number of Equity Shares Qutstanding for £0.13 500! £0.13.500]

Diluted EPS {{A)i f B! } 1.62) 0.45}




CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited

{Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technclogies and Advvisory Services Pt Ltel)
CIN No : U74210 MH1999PTC118349
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

Note 25.6: Flnanical Instruments: Disclosure [Ind AS 107}

Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities {Ind AS 107):

e Asat]
- Midrch 31,2019
Financial assets at Amortized cost:
Loans (Nor Cutrent) 24,57,681 10,%0,000
Loans {Current} - 1,25,000
Trade Receivables 3,95,16,812 1,71,61,650
Cash and Cash Equivalents 18,91,343 18,14,673
Bank Balances other than cash Equivalents 98,60,000 9,27,000
Cther Current Financial Assets 4,96,24,391 3,81,94,545
Financial assets at Fair Value through P&L:
investment (Current) 5,14,926 25,03,198
Total 10,38,65,153 6,17,76,067
Financial fiabilitles at Amortized cost;
Borrowings 7,12,43,975 5,42,81,320
QOther Current Financia! Liabilities 47,63,397 23,24,320
Total 7,61,07,372 5,66,05,650

Note 25.7; Fair Value measurement [Ind AS 113):

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

The Company has established the following fair value hierarchy that categorizes the values into 3 levels. The inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value of flnanmal |nstruments are:

" This hlerarchv uses uucted [unadlustedl Rrices in actwe markets for |dent:cal assets or ||ab|||t|es The company does nut have any such asset or Ilabllmes

Level 2:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techriques which maximize the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimates. The investment in mutual funds are valued using the closing Net Asset Value based on the mutuat
fund statements raceived by the company.  if all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Levet 2.

Level 3:
If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Leve! 3.

Particulars ) . R Levell - - " Level 2 ) Pl Level 3

Asat March 31, 2019
investments measured at
Fair Value through Profit and Loss:
Units of Debt schemes of Various Mutual
Funds - 5,14,926 -

As at March 31, 2018
Investments measured at
Fair Value through Profit and Loss;
Units of Debit schemes of Various Mutual
Funds - 25,03,158 -

The management assessed that cash and bank balances, trade payakles, and other financial asset and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments.




CARE Risk Salutians Private Limited

[Formerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Technalogies and Aduvisory Services Pyt Etd}
CIN No : U74210 MH1999PTC11834%

Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Nate 25.8: Finznclal Risk Management Objectives and Palicles {Ind AS 307):

The Cempany's principal financial llabilities comprise borrowings and Trade payables. The main purpose of these financial labilities is to finance and support the Company’s operations. The
Company’s principal financial assets include Investments, Loans and Other receivables, Cash and Cash Fqui s, Other Bank Bal,

The Company is exposed to Market Risk, Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Cempany's senior management
ensures that the Company's financial risk activities are governad by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are Identifled, measured and managed In accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk chjectives.

The Management of the Company codates its Board of Directors on periodic basls ahout varisus risks to the business and status of various agtivities clanned to mitizate the risk.

The Company has expesure to the following fisks arising from financial instruments:

2. Market Risk

Market risk is the isk that the fair value or future cash flows of such financial instrurent will be impacted becayse of various finanical and non finanical market factors, The financlal
instruments affected by market risk include the Investment in Mutual Funds and investment in Equity Shares cf ocompanfes [ncorporated and operating outside Indla.

The investment In mutual funds are fair valued using the closing Net Asset Value based on the mutual fund statements recelved by the company at the end of each reporting period.

The Company does not sae any Interest rate risk since the Company hold those financial Tnstrument whose fair value or future cash flows will not fluctuate much because of changes In market
interest rates,

The following table shaws foreign currency exposures in USD, LKR on financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. The expasure to foreign currency for ali other currencies are not
material, The Company does not hedge its feraign currency exposure. The exchange rate used to translate the below fareign currencies are as follows: 1 USD = 69.1712 INR; 1 LKR = 0.3912
INR.

L Cufenty-

' ~ Amount [nFC:--" " Amount Rs. -
Sundry Debtors usp 5,432,915 3,75,54,133 172,493 1,12,19,620
Sundry Debtors LXR 89,58,352 35,04,5397 98,85,233 41,03,360
Unbilled Revenve usp 6,86,285 4,75,48,729 3,534,979 2,31,39,513
Unbiled Revenue LKR 5,18,706 13,25,935 3,55,39,852 1,47,67,164
Cash in hand usD - - - -
Bank Balance in current account usp - - - -
Farelgn Currency Sensitivity on unhedged exposure:
1% increase in foreign exchange rate will have the following impact on profit befare tax:

{Amount in INR)

L B,86,520
" 1,88,705

Note: If the rate is decreased by 1% profit will increase by 2n equal amount

b. Cradit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financia! loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from
fram its operarting (primarily Trade Receivables], investing and financing activities inciuding Mutuai Fund Investments, Investment in Debt Securities, Bank Balance, Deposits with Bank,
Security Ceposits, Loans to Empleyees and other financiz! instruments.

The Company measuras and manages its Credit Risk by diversifeation of its surplus funds Inte various mutuai fund schemes based on its investment palicy. The Company restricts its axpasure
in equity market.

Total Trade receivable as on March 31, 2019 is X 3,95,16,812 {March 31, 2018 %1,71,61,650 /1t

The Company has higher concentration of credit risks to a single custormer. Refer the below table.
As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using 2 provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default payments znd makes
appropriate prevision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk

As Per the provision matrix recelvables are classified Into different bucket based on the overdue period, buckets range from 12 months - 18 months, 18 months - 24 months and mare than 24
months. The norms of provisioning on the same range are from 25% - 100%. The management, on a case to case basis may decide to provide or write of at a higher rate with reasons whenever

felt necessary.

Particutarg Total Bank of Ceylon Congentration
Gross debtors 4,50,93,033 1,94,26,101 45%
Luoss: Provisions ~35,76,220 -1,61,380

Nat Debtors 3,95,16,812 1,92,64,221 49%

Proviston movement during the year:

March31,°2019°

Add: Provided during the Year 7,93,184 4,66,359
Less: Utilised during the Year [13,61,166) -
Closing Provision 35,76,220 41,44,203

43,44,203

Investments, Cash and Cash Equjvalent and Bank Depaosi

Credit Risk en cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks/financial Institutions is generally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions who have been

assigned high credit rating by international and demestic rating agencies.

Investments of surplus funds are made only based on Investment Policy of the Company. nvestments primarily include investment in uhits of mutual funds, Bond's issued by Government/

Semi Government Agencies/ PSU atc. These Mutual Funds and Counterparties have low credit risk.




CARE Risk Solutjons Private Limited
{Formerly known as CARE Kalypte Risk Technologies and Advvisory Services Pyt Ltd)
© Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financlal obligations as they fall due. The cash flows and liquidity of Company is monitored under the control of the

management. The objective is te ensure that Company's surplus fund are net kept Idie and Invested in the financial instruments only after adequate review of such instrument and approvai of
the management.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, cantinuously menitoring forecasted and actual periodic cash requirement and matching the maturity profiles of
financizi assets and liabilities,

The Company generaliy has investments and liquids funds more than its forecaseted and current liabilities and has not faced shortage of funds at any point of time. The Liguidity risk on the
Company is very less,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractua! undiscounted payments.

i at March 31,2019 : : al e
Berrowings - 7.13,43,975 71343975
Other Current Financial Liabilities 47,63,357 47,63,397
Total 47,63,357 7,13,43,975 - 7,61,07,372
Investments in Mutual Funds 5,14,926 5,184,926
Deposits with Banks 4,03,106 4,03,106
Total $,18,031 - - $,18,031

* As atMarh 31, 2018 172 Lessthan 3 Year | More than 5 .-

. R, Sincrllsons i - Years oot

Borrowings - £,42,81.330 54281330
Other Financial Liabilities 23,24,320 23,24,320
Total 23,24,320 5.42,81,330 - 5,66,G5,650
Investments in Mutual Funds 25,03,198 25,03,198
Deposits with Banks 7,81,701 7,81,701
Tatal 32,84,899 - - 32,84,899

Nate 25.9: Distribution made and proposed {Ind AS 1):

The Company has declared preference dividend during any of the reporting period amouniting to 62,982 {PY: NIL}

Note 25.10: Canital Management (Ind A5 1);

The Company has a share capital warth 8,01,35,000 along with total borrowings of 7,13,43,875 which comprises of Unsecured loan from Care Ratings Limited worth 1 crore and Preference
shares worth 6,13,43,975 as on 31 March 2019, The Company is not exposed to any regulatory imposed capital requirements,

The cash surplus are currently invested in income generating Mutual funds units which in ine with its Investment Pollcy . Safety of Capital s of prime importance to ensure availaibility of
capital for operations.Investment objective is ta provide safety and adequate return an surplus funds,

Note 25.1%; Operating Leases {ind AS 17%;

With respect 10 officss taken on lease, there are no Fu

ire -n'iir!img.lm lfeqtal'pa'yables_ under non-czncellable operating lease

’ b.With réspect ta office glifen.on {ea.se, opérating lease Income recognized in the Staternent of Profit and Lss.

¢. General Description of Leasing Agreements:
- Assets taken on leaseMahape
- Future lease rental income are determined on basis of agreed terms
- At expiry of lease terms, the Campany has the right to extend the term of agreement
- Lease agreements are generaily cancellable by giving 1 months notice period and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancelzble operating lzase is given below:

Lease payments For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2012

Mot later thap one year
Later than one year but not later than 3 years -

Note 75.12; Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small ang Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED) which came Into force from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro,
Small and Medium enterprises,

Asat As at
Particul
articulars March 31,2018 | March 31, 2018

Princlpal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpald te any supplier as at the year end - -

Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Bevelooment Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act', alene with the amount of the pavment made ta the supniier bevond the - -

Amount of interest due and payable for the pericd of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the|
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest spacified under the MSMED Act - -

Amount of interest accrued and remalning unpaid at the end of the accounting year - -

There is ne principal amount and interest cverdue to Micro and Small Enterprises. During the year no interest has bean paid to such parties. This information has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of informaticn available with the Company and the same has been relled upon by the auditors,

FENTERES
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CARE Risk Salutions Private Limited
N {Farmerly known as CARE Kalypto Risk Tachnalogies and Adwvisory Services Pvt Ltd)

oo Note 25.13; Segment Reparting {Ind AS 108):

The Company has following business segments, which are its reportable segments. Operating segment disclosures are consistent with the information provided to and reviewed by the Chief

{A) Primary Segment Information

el i - For the year Ended March 31,-2019 TR
Risk Solutlons |~ " Advisary i Unallocable . |- Total

Segment Revenue
Revenue from Services 15,28,54,313 20,556,654 - 15,45,10,967
Tatal Revenue {A] “15,28,54,313 20,556,654 - 15,4%,10,367
Less: Inter Segment Revenue if any {B) - - - -
Total Segment Revenue {C = A-B} 15,28,54,313 20,56,654 - 15,49,10,967
$egment Results (Profit Before Interest, ey
Depreciation & Tax) 2,20,95,381 517,840 2,26,13,221 g}_
Less: Depreclation & Amertization 22,28,586 - - 22,28,586
Total Segment Result (D] 1,98,66,795 517,840 - 2,03,84,635 o
B
Less: Finance Costs - - 78,10,581 78,10,581 %
Add: Other Unallocable Income - Net . - - 25,98,791 25,98,791 oy
Profit Befare Exceptional ltarm & Tax 1,98,66,795 5,17,840 (52,11,730) 1,51,72,845 g
Exceptional ltems - Income/Expenses - - - - =
Profit Beare Tax 1,98,66,795 517,840 (52,11,790} 1,51,72,845 :%
Tan Expenses - - 22,08,737 22,08,737 ]
- Currant Tax - - - - S
- Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit} - - . 22,08,737 22,08,737 3
Profit far the year 1,98,66,795 517,840 (74,20,527) 1,29,64,108
Segment Assets 11,36,94,358 2,563,462 - 11,39,57,820
Unallocable Assets - - 1,56,68,357 1,96,68,357
Jotal Assets 11,36,94,358 2,63,462 1,96,68,357 13,36,26,178
3,73,00,034 53,979 - 3,73,54,013
- - 7,73,15,171 7,73,15,171
Yotal Liabiiities 3,73,00,034 53,979 7,73,15,171 11,46,69,184
Capital Employed - - - 5,03,00,96%
Capital Expenditure 21,35,400 - - 21,39,400

For the year £nded March 31, 2018

L Fartledlars - - “Risk Solutions [ - Advisory " - | <7 Unallocable™~ | - Total *-: |
Segment Revenue
Revenue from Services 7,96,31,839 65,336,536 - 8,61,68,375

Total Revenue {A) 7,96,31,839 65,36,536 - 8,61,68,375
Less: Inter Segment Revenus if any (B) - - . o

51,682,375,

Segment Results [Rrofit Before Interest,

74,87,628 ‘27,318,229 - 1,02,01,857

. .iPepreciation & Tax})

Less: Depreciation & Amortization 17,28,201 - - 17,28,201
Total Segment Result [D) 57,59,427 27,14, 229 - 84,73,656
Less: Finance Costs - - 58,21,214 58,21,214
Add: Cther Unallocable Income - Net - - 8,71,773 8,71,773
Prefit Before Excegtional ltem & Tax 57,59,427 27,14,229 {49,49,441) 35,24,215
Exceptional ltems - Income/Expenses - - - -
Profit Before Tax 57,59,427 27,14,229 {49,49,a41} 35,24,215
Tax Expenses

- Current Tax - - - -
- Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit} - - 9,35,440); {9,35,440)
Profit for the year 57,549,427 27,14,229 {40,14,001} 44,59,655
Segment Assets 6,74,48,755 18,66,065 - 6,93,14,820
Unallocable Assets - - 1,66,16,827 1,66,16,827
Total Assets 6,74,48,755 18,66,065 1,66,16,827 8,59,31,647
Segment Liabilities 2,43,26,149 9,64,277 - 2,52,90,426
Unallocable Lisbiiities - - 5,43,31,741 5,43,31,741
Total Liabilities 2,43,26,149 9,64,277 5,43,31,741 7,96,22,167
Capital Employed 6,05,90,£10
Capltai Expenditure 20,96,056 - - 20,96,056

(B} Secendary Segment Information

Earticul'ar'_s

Endia”

Far Eas

~Total

i7 $rilanka |
Revenue from Operations 1,48,10,765 62,72,360 12,13,35,357 1,24,92,485 15,49,10,957
Unallocated Revenue - - - - -
Total Revenue from Operations 1,48,10,765 62,72,360 12,13,35,357 1,24,92,4385 15,49,10,957
Sundry Debtors 19,87,177 53,18,547 3,16,23,133 5,87,956 3,95,16,812
Unbllfed Revenue - - 4,88,47,413 3,57,386 4,92,04,798
Unallocated Assets - - - - 4,49,04,567
Total Assets 15,87,177 53,18,547 8,06,70,546 9,45,342 13,36,26,178

. e Tt -For.the year ended March 31,2018 - = ¢ s

. Partioutars. Indin | - UAEGATica | . Shlanka - . | - FarEa Total -
Revenue from Operations 2,49,52,275 3,15,96,271 2,82,77,531 12,92,886 8,61,18,964
Unallocated Revenue - - - - 49,411
Tetal Revenue from Operations 2,49,52,275 3,15,96,271 2,82,77,531 12,92,886 8,61,68,375
Sundry Debtors §0,14,563 31,90,867 79,56,220 1,71,61,650
Unbilled Revenue 24,000 34,81,290 3,44,01,504 3,79.06,795
Unallacated Assets 3,08,63,202
Total Assets 60,383,563 66,72,157 4,23,52,125 - 3,59,31,647




CARE Risk Sclutions Private Limited
(Farmerly known as CARE Kalypta Risk Technologies and Advvisary Services Pt Ltd)

Note 25.14: Revenue from Contracts with Customers
In March 2018, the Minlstry of Corporate Affalrs issued the Companies {Indlan Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018, notHying Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’,
which replaces Ind AS 18 ‘Revenue’. Based on the preliminary assessment cerried cut by the management, except for the disclosure requirements, the application of new standard may not

have any significant impact the Company's financial statements, The amendment will come into force from April 01, 2018.

Note 25,15: Compounded Finangial Instruments {Ind AS 32}

The company has issued 50,00,000 D.1% Optionally Convertible Cumuylative Redeemable Preference {OCCRPS) of Rs 10 each at par to its Holding Company on March 25,2017. The tenure of
‘OCCRPS is five (5} years with an option to the Holding Company to convert any time after three{3] vears at face value. The GCCRPS shall be non- particpating and hence do not have any right
to participate in surplus profits.Tha OCCRPS do not have right to participate in surplus assets and profits on winding up, which may remain after the entire capital has been repaid,
Redemption put cption is available to the Holding Company after 3 or 5 years. if redeemed after 3 years, redemption premium could be benchmarked to 3 year G-sec prevailing at that time
plus mark-up of 3%. if after 5 years, redemption premium could be benchmarked to 5 year G-sec yleld pravailing at that time plus mark-up of 3%.

The redemptior premiurn which would be payable after 3 vears or 5 years at the prevailing G-5ec rate plus mark-up of 3% is considered to be per annum basis & charged

every year as per the management.

The above instrument has been treated as Compound Financial Instruments under Ind AS 32 and the same has been split into Equity and Liability Companent, Equity Component is shawn
under note 14 'Other Equity' and Liability Component Is shown under Note 15 ‘Borrowings',

Note 25.16: Income Taxes (Ind AS 12]
{A) Incame tax recognised in statement of Profit & Loss:

Particulars As 2t March 2018 | As at March 2018
Current Tax - -
Defered Tax 22,08,737 -10,12,567
Total 22,0&137 ~10,12,567
B) Recanciliation of effective tax expenses
Porticuiars l As at Merch 2019 | As at March 2018 ]
Applicakle Tax rate 27.82% 27.82%
Tax effect of Exempt Income 3,15% 0.00%
Tax effect of Non Deductible expenses -16.42% -65.99%
Effective Tax rate 14.55% -38.17%
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25.17; Accounting Policy on Revenue Contrasts as per Ind AS 125

The Company derives revenues primarily from business IT services comprising of software development and related services, constlting and package implementation and from the licensing of software
products and platforms across our core and digitz! offerings (“together called as software related serviges”],

tffective April1,2018, the Company adopted IndAS115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of
Aprill,2018. in accordance with the cumulative catchup transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The following is 2 summary of new and/or revised significant accounting
policies related to revenue recognition. Refer Notel “SigniflcantAccountingPolicies,” in the Company's 2018 Annual Regort for the policies in effect for revenue prior to April 1, 2018. The effect on adoption of
Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of contrel of promised products or senvices to customers in an zmount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services.
Arrangements with customers for software related services are on a fixed-price or on fixed-time frame basis,

Arrangements with customers for saftware related services are either on a fixed-price or on fixed-timeframe.

Revanue from fixed-price & fixed-timeframe contracts, where the performance obligations are satisfied overtime and where there is no uncertalnty as to measurement or collectability of consideration,is
recognized as per the percantage-of-completion methed. When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate coilectabllity, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resclved. Efforts or
cosis expended have been used te measure progress towards completion as there [s a dirert refationship between input andproductivity. Maintenance revenue s recognized ratably over the term of the
underlying maintenance arrangement.

Revenues In excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we refer as unbilled revenue} whila involcing in excess of revenues are classified 2s contyact liabilities {which we refer to as unearnad
revenues).

In arrangements for software development and refated services and maintenance services, the Company has applied the guidance In IndAS115, Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue
fecognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with customers generally meet the criteria for considering software development and related services as distinct performance
obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has measured the revenue in respact of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative standalone selling price.The price that is
regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling price. In cases wheve the company is unable to determine the standalone selling price,the cempany uses the
expected cost plus margin approach in estimating the standzlone selling price, For software development and refated services, the performance obligations are satisfied as and when the services are rendered
since the customer generally obtains control of the work as it progresses.

Arrangements to deliver software products lly have three el license, impl ntation and Annual Maintenance Contracts (AMC). The company has applied the principles under Ind AS 115 ta
account for revenues from these performance abligatlons. When implementation services are provided in conjunction with the licensing arrangement and the license and implementation have been identified
astwo separate performance cbligations, the transaction price for such contracts are allocated to each performance obligation of the contract hased on their relative standalone selling prices. in the absence
of stendalone selling price for implementation, the performance obligation Is estimated using the expected cost plus margin approach. Whate the license is required to be substantially customized as part of
the implementation service the entire arrangement fee for license and implementation is considered to be a single performance obligation and the revenue is recognized using the percentage-of-completion
method as the implementation is performed. Revenue from client training, suppert and other services arising due to the sale of software preducts is recognized as the performance obligations ave satisfied,
AMC revenue is recognized ratably over the contract peried in which the services are repdered.

The Company presents revenues net of indfrect taxes in its condensed statement of Profit and loss.

Particulars - - B . " 'Three months ended March 31, " Year Ended ended March 31,

2019 2018 2019 2018
Szfe of Licences and services 5,86,26,551 5,11,40,698 15,11,58,445 9,54,59,305
Fee for Consultancy Services 8,70,357 -41,27,961 36,75,857 34,03,41%
Cther Operating Revenue -4,218 -1 36,665 49,411
Total 5,94,92,690 4,70,12,736 15,45,10,567 9,89,12,135

Disapgregate revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the three months and year ended March 31, 2019 by offerings and contract-type. The Company believe that this
disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenuss and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Three months ended Year £nded ended

Revenue by ¢fferings March 31, March 31,

2019 2048
Product Implementation 5,61,80,638 14,58,53,415
Digitaltsation/Automation 33,12,052 90,57,552
Tota! 5.94,92,690 15,49,10.367

Three months ended Year Ended ended

Revenue by contract type March 31, March 31,

2019 2029
Fixed Price $,27.95,722 12,76,71,697
Fixed time frame contracts i £6,96 958 2,72,39,270

Total 5,94,92,630 15,49,10,867




i

Trade receivables and Contract Balances
The company classifles the right to id

for as efther a receivable er as unbilled revenue.

ey

ion in

A receivable is a right to c leration that is unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue for time and materlal contracts are recognized as related service are performed. Revenue for fixed price
malntenance contracts Is recognized on a straight line basis over the period of the contract. Revenues in excess of billings is recorded as unbilled revenue.

Revenue recognition for fixed price development contracts Is based on percentage of completlon method. Invaicing to the clients is based on milestones as defined in the contract. This would result in the
timing of revenue recogaition being different from the timing of billing the customers. Unkilled revenue for fixed price development contracts is <lassified as non financiak asset as the contractual Hght to

consideration is on of contractual milestones.

Involcing in excess of earnings are classified as unearned revenue,

Trade recelvable and unbilled revenues are presented net of impairment in the Baiance Sheet.

During the year ended March 31, 2019, Rs.2.16 crore of unbilfed revenue pertaining to fixed price development contracts as of April 1, 2018 has bean reclassiied to Trade receivables upob billing to
customers o completion of milestones,

The aggregate value of performance obligatlons that are completely or partfally . Isfied as at March 31, 2019 ie. unearned revenue, is Rs.2.09 crore. Out of this, the Company expects to recognize revenue
of around 60% within the next one year and the remaining thereafter, This includes cantracts that can be terminated for convenience without a substantive penalty since, based on current assessiment, the
occurrence of the same is expected to be remote,

The impact on account of applying the erstwhile Ind AS 18 Revenue instead of Ind AS 115 Revenue from contract with customers on the financlals results of the Company for the three months and year ended
and as at March 31, 2019 Is Inslgnificant,

Slignificant Accounting Policles and Notes 1 to 25 form an Integral part of the financial statements
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